
ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN REVIEW BOARD 
INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY 

MEETING MINUTES 

 TUESDAY, MAY 17, 2016  

Meeting Minutes May 2016 Page 1 of 8 

 

PRESENT:  Hugh S. Lacy, Chairman 

   Donald A. Hickey, Jr 

 Cosmo Veneziale 

   Barbara Ruggiero 

   Celia Petersen 

   Daniel Fabrizi  

    Phil Santantonio 

   William Allese  

 

 ALSO PRESENT:  Ausberto Huertas Jr. M.S, Assoc. AIA, CEO 

  Department of Buildings Superintendent 

 

ABSENT:   none      

         Commenced at    8:15   p.m.  

I. APPROVAL OF  MINUTES: 

  The minutes of the April 19, 2016 meeting were approved. 

II.  Applications: 

1. 285 NEW HYDE PARK ROAD (Pariti Residence) for additions/alterations presented by 

James Lerner, R.A.   

Mr. Lerner stated that the matter was adjourned from the previous meeting with the 

objection that the materials were not listed on the drawings previously submitted.  Mr. 

Lerner stated that the material list was added to the elevation drawings numbered 3 and 

4.   

Mr. Lerner presented samples of the roof material and stated they tried to match the 

existing roof material (Virginia slate) and also presented the siding material to be Georgia 

Pacific Clapped Vision in Pro Tan color, also to match the existing.  The proposed corner 

boards will be white and the step risers in tan to match the existing siding.   



ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN REVIEW BOARD 
INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY 

MEETING MINUTES 

 TUESDAY, MAY 17, 2016  

Meeting Minutes May 2016 Page 2 of 8 

The Board questioned the 20’ rear yard setback.  Mr. Lerner stated that the applicant is 

applying for a variance.  Should the Zoning Board of Appeals grant the variance, the Board 

will accept the plan, as submitted.   

        The application was approved, subject to the outcome of the Zoning Board of Appeals.   

 

2.  198 WEYFORD TERRACE (198 Weyford Terrace LLC) for a replacement dwelling presented 

by John Viscardi, R.A. and Howard Tarr.  

Mr. Viscardi stated that the existing dwelling is a one-story ranch and the proposal is for 

taking the house down to the existing floor joists and adding a second floor addition.  

Photographs were presented of the existing dwelling, which is in its original state, not 

modified.  Photographs of adjoining homes were also presented.  The proposed addition 

will be 30’ to the ridge with Azek trim, charcoal black roofing, Certainteed Cedar 

Impression Heritage Cream shingles, Connecticut split fieldstone with 2” bluestone cap. 

One doghouse dormer will be added, vinyl raise panel shutters, no window on the second 

floor; the side elevation has a skirt roof.  The rear has a canopy roof that projects out 24”, 

windows are the same as the front.  The layout is squared off to increase the living are 

and the façade is split into four sections.  The windows are 6 over 1 and are all egress 

windows.   Mr. Viscardi stated the windows are in proportion to the first floor windows.  

The grills are installed between the glass and will stand out from the street.   

 

 

 



ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN REVIEW BOARD 
INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY 

MEETING MINUTES 

 TUESDAY, MAY 17, 2016  

Meeting Minutes May 2016 Page 3 of 8 

The Board inquired if a landscape plan will be submitted.   Mr. Viscardi stated that a 

landscape plan will be submitted at a later date and no trees will be removed.  The Board 

questioned the height of the adjoining homes.  Mr. Viscardi stated some of the 

neighboring homes are higher than the proposed dwelling.   

 The application was approved. 

3.  206 KILDARE ROAD (Geiger Residence) for additions/alterations presented by Melissa & 

Michael Geiger.   The chairman called the matter at the commencement of the meeting 

and stated that the drawings were inadequate.  The architect appeared on behalf of the 

applicant and the Board requested that complete drawings be resubmitted at a later date.   

The application was adjourned. 

4. 7 SOMERSET AVENUE (Varisano Residence) for additions and alterations presented by 

Jack Riffle, R.A.  

Mr. Riffle presented the proposed addition to an existing split level home.  He stated the 

owners require additional space at this time.   An application was presented and approved 

by the Zoning Board of Appeals.  The proposal is for a rear family room, new kitchen 

opening the front of the house to increase living space and utilize unusable space.  The 

proposed siding is to be Hardi- plank in Booth Bay Blue with contrasting white Azek 

molding and corner boards.   The roof will be charcoal gray and composite black shutters 

with white window trim.  Country field stone will be added to the base of the façade.  Mr. 

Riffle presented photos of the adjacent homes.   

The Board requested a material list which was not included on the drawings submitted. A 

question was also raised regarding the color rendering presented, which did not appear 

to match the sample color presented and would prefer that the corner boards match the 



ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN REVIEW BOARD 
INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY 

MEETING MINUTES 

 TUESDAY, MAY 17, 2016  

Meeting Minutes May 2016 Page 4 of 8 

siding instead of white.   The Board also inquired as to the height of the existing house as 

compared to the proposal submitted as well as the height of the adjoining homes.   Mr. 

Riffle stated this house will be the smallest on the block, in comparison.  

The Board requested a material list be resubmitted as well as a landscape plan.  Mr. Riffle 

stated he will not be in the country for the next meeting.  The applicant will resubmit and 

the landscape plan will be submitted at a later date.    

 The application was adjourned.   

5.  104 WASHINGTON AVENUE (Reja Residence) for additions/alterations presented by  

Mark Geiselman, R.A. 

Mr. Geiselman presented the proposed addition (Page F-1) and presented a color material 

list.  Mr. Geiselman stated they were matching materials to the existing house.  The scope 

is a second floor addition for a master suite and deck at the rear.  The painted cedar 

shakes is Benjamin Moore- Powell Buff color, Anderson windows and white corner boards 

on the gable ends.  No landscape changes.     

The Board questioned if any changes were proposed to the front elevation.    Mr. 

Geiselman stated the only change was the addition of the front gable.   

  The application was approved.   

 

6.   104 SIXTH STREET (Boychuk Residence)   new one family dwelling presented by T.J. 

Costello, R.A. and Mr. & Mrs. Boychuk.  

Mr. Costello presented revised drawings to reflect the comments from the previous 

meeting.  The Board previously requested that revised elevations of the house be 

provided as well as drawings of the adjacent neighbors to indicate context and scale.   Mr. 



ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN REVIEW BOARD 
INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY 

MEETING MINUTES 

 TUESDAY, MAY 17, 2016  

Meeting Minutes May 2016 Page 5 of 8 

Costello presented the original color rendering and presented an additional rendering 

with a steeper roof pitch to soften the appearance and also introduced the addition of a 

veranda.  Mr. Costello stated if the Board was in support of the house with the veranda, 

it was requested that the Board grant up to 10 percent additional square footage for 

purposes of zoning.  Mr. Costello also presented drawings and photographs of the 

adjoining homes.  A suggestion was made to not include the garage in the plans, go to the 

Zoning Board of Appeals and build the garage at a later date.   

The Board requested comparisons of the distances of the adjoining homes as well as 

photographs of the adjoining home. It was stated that the distance of the proposed 

dwelling is 26.6 feet to the neighbor.  Mr. Costello stated members of the Board had an 

opportunity to walk through the existing dwelling which showed lack of maintenance over 

the years.  Mr. Costello stated the electrical system is dysfunctional and the systems must 

be updated to bring it up to code and also stated the basement is not usable.   

A member of the Board stated the existing house is in remarkable condition, with the 

exception of the porch, and inquired if attempts were made to preserve the house since 

it is on the Historic Registry. The Board also commented that the materials of the existing 

dwelling are natural and significant in nature and add texture, as compared to the Hardi-

plank and Azek composite materials being considered.  Mr. Costello stated they would 

look into matching the original materials.  An inquiry was made regarding the Yankee 

gutters and the gothic windows and a suggestion was made to possibly consider round 

windows instead. The dwelling is over 47 sq. ft. of lot coverage, and it was suggested that 

house be reduced in square footage.  The Board is in favor of the design with the porch. 



ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN REVIEW BOARD 
INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY 

MEETING MINUTES 

 TUESDAY, MAY 17, 2016  

Meeting Minutes May 2016 Page 6 of 8 

 Mr. Costello stated due diligence was made to the Building Dept. and no notification was 

made to protect this property.  In the purchasing process, a notification was sent 

regarding the fact that the dwelling is on the Historic Registry.  The owners stated if they 

were informed of the history of this particular dwelling, they would not have purchased 

the house.    The owner stated their intent to design a home to fit into the neighborhood, 

not produce a replicate.  The Board stated their intent but cannot challenge the 

perspective to renovate or not.  The Board stated the function of the Architectural Design 

Review Board is to deal with the aesthetics not dictate how the owners choose to live in 

the home.  The Board also stated the Village is in the crossroads in deciding to approve 

demolishing an AT Stewart home.  A suggestion was made by the Board to possibly 

relocate the existing home to another location.  The Board stated they appreciate the 

intent to design a home in keeping with the neighborhood.    

Jason Crowley of the Society for the Preservation of Long Island Antiquities was present 

at the meeting and stated that Garden City is not protected by preservation of these types 

of dwellings.  He further stated that 104 Sixth Street is one of 50 similar homes on the 

national historic registry and no demolition can occur until Section 1409 Environmental 

Impact Statement will have to be filed.  The society recommends preservation of the 

existing dwelling to avoid a detrimental impact for future considerations.  The Board 

should work with the trustees so as preserve the dwelling.   

The Chairman of the Board gave an opportunity for residents and neighbors that were 

present to speak.  Katie Donahue of 45 Hilton, questioned if it the job of the ADRB to 

approve the demolition or to approve the dwelling.  The Superintendent stated the 

demolition was not approved until the design of the dwelling was submitted.  The Board 



ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN REVIEW BOARD 
INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY 

MEETING MINUTES 

 TUESDAY, MAY 17, 2016  

Meeting Minutes May 2016 Page 7 of 8 

stated it is not the Board’s function to approve the demolition but to approve the 

aesthetics of the design presented.   Mr. Costello stated demolition is an as of right action 

and the ADRB cannot act on an absence house.  He further stated it was never the owners’ 

intent to leave a vacant lot but to build a beautiful home which is the owner’s rights and 

privileges.   

Kevin Walsh of Hilton Avenue stated on behalf of the neighbors present who have historic 

homes in the area and the renovations are very costly and require constant upkeep.   He 

also stated that the proposed house is beautiful and in keeping with the neighborhood.   

Garden City is an “Eden” and the people make it a terrific place.  He also recommended 

the matter not require Zoning Board Approval since they ae not sympathetic for new 

construction.   The statute provides for not to what is being taking down but should 

concentrate on what is being built.  

Eric Bensen of 47 Hilton Avenue stated that repairs are very complicated and expensive 

and agree that the Village should not dictate the owners how to live.   

Mrs. Maureen Traxler, Treasurer and member of the GC Historical Society presented a 

letter from a 40-year executive director of the regional preservation- Gardens of Eden 

which included the significance of Garden City and by allowing demolition of this dwelling 

would lead to Garden City becoming “Any-place USA”. 

Mr. Carney of 95 Fifth Street stated his house is a “labor of love” but is of the opinion that 

owners of these types of properties should not be restricted and have to respect the 

owners’ wishes.   

Mr. Brian Pinnola, 56 Kingsbury Road, on the Board of the GC Historical Society and 

presented the function of the ADRB.  On behalf of the Board of Trustees, states the 



ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN REVIEW BOARD 
INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF GARDEN CITY 

MEETING MINUTES 

 TUESDAY, MAY 17, 2016  

Meeting Minutes May 2016 Page 8 of 8 

purpose is to preserve the posterity in support of the preservation of homes on the 

Historic Registry. 

Jeffrey Pressler, Historian and specializing in NYC and Long Island who lives in Sunny side, 

Queens, NY and is aware of what it takes to maintain homes of this nature.  He has been 

involved in preservation work for 30 years and supports the NYC Landmark Law and 

appreciates the regulations over his property.  

Mr. Costello made a formal request to know the path going forward on behalf of the 

owners.  He stated the Boychuk’s propose the following:   1) to sell the property;  2)  for 

the Board to render their opinion as presented today with the proposal of the veranda 

and to shave off square footage; with detached structure; 3.  without the porch and two 

car garage;  4)  The first proposal.   

A discussion ensued and it was decided that the Board would be in favor of the design 

with the porch and possibly resubmit with samples of materials being used with colors in 

addition to the Arctic White.      

The Board approved the submission 5 to 2 without the garage and a landscape plan to be 

resubmitted at a later date with the hope that the house be relocated.   

 

The meeting adjourned at   10:25.   


